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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable WHIiam F. Scott, III, Mayor 
And Members of the Council 

Town of Cottonport, Louisiana 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information, of the Town of Cottonport, 
Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprises the Town's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America: this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'Judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that our audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable 
basis for our audit opinions. 

American Institute of • Mcmders • Society of Louisiana 
Certified Public Accountants \ Certified Public Accountants 

219 North Washington • Post Office Box 309 • Marksvilk, Louisiana 71351 • (318) 253-6501 • Fax (318) 253 0721 



Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana, as of June 30. 2017, 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then 
ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 8; the budgetary comparison information on pages 40 through 
42; and the schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability and schedule of contributions related 
to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System and Municipal Police Employees Retirement System on 
pages 44 and 45 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the Information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, 
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana's financial statements as a whole. The Schedule of 
Compensation Paid to Elected Officials and Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to 
Agency Heads and the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules 
described in the accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are 
not a required part of the financial statements. 

These schedules and combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
these schedules and the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in 
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28, 
2017, on our consideration of the Town of Cottonport's internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grand agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Cottonport's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

DVCOTE& COMPANY 
Marksville, Louisiana 
November 28, 2017 

American Institute of • ^^mb€^s • Society of Louisiana 
Certified Public Accountants Certified Public Accountants 

21d North Washington • Post Office Box 309 • Marksville. Louisiana 71351 • (318) 255-^501 • Fax (318) 253-0721 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (PART I) 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 



Town of Cottonport, Louisiana 
Management's 

Discussion and Analysis 
June 30,2017 

This discussion and analysis is intended to be an easily readable analysis of the Town of Cottonport's financial 
activities based on currently known facts, decisions or conditions. This analysis focuses on current year activities and 
should be read in conjunction with the financial statements that follow: 

Report Layout 

With the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, "Basic Financial 
Statements-and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments," a government's 
presentation of financial statements has been greatly changed. Besides the Management's Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A), the report consists of government-wide statements, fund financial statements, notes to the financial 
statements, combining schedules of non-major funds and supplementary information. The first several statements are 
highly condensed and present a government-wide view of the Town's finances. Within this view, all Town operations 
are categorized and reported as either governmental or business-type activities. Governmental activities include basic 
services such as police, fire, public works, parks and recreation, community development and general government 
administration. The sales tax fund is also included in the governmental activities. The Town's component unit, the 
Cottonport Volunteer Fire Department has their general fund reported within the governmental activities. The Town's 
other activities of water and sewer operations are reported within the business-type activities. These government-
wide statements are designed to be more corporate-like in that all activities are consolidated into a total for the Town. 

Basic Financial Statements 

• The Statement of Net Position focuses on resources available for future operations. In simple terms, this 
statement presents a snap-shot view of the assets the community owns, the liabilities it owes and the net 
difference. The net difference is further separated into amounts restricted for specific purposes and 
unrestricted amounts. Under the new reporting requirements of GASH 34, governmental activities reflect 
capital assets including infrastructure and long-term liabilities. Business-type activities have long reported 
capital assets and long-term liabilities. Also, under the new reporting requirements, governmental activities 
are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. 

• The Statement of Activities focuses gross and net costs of town programs and the extent to which such 
programs rely upon general tax and other revenues. This statement summarizes and simplifies the user's 
analysis to determine the extent to which programs are self-supporting and/or subsidized by general revenues. 

• Fund financial statements focus separately on major governmental funds and proprietary funds. The Town's 
major governmental funds are presented in their own column and the remaining funds are combined into a 
column titled "Other Governmental Funds." A budgetary comparison is presented for the general fund, sales 
tax fund and the volunteer fire department fund. Statements for the Town's proprietary funds follow the 
governmental funds and include net assets, revenue, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flow. 

• The notes to the financial statements provide additional disclosures required by governmental accounting 
standards and provide information to assist the reader in understanding the Town's financial condition. 

Readers desiring additional information on non-major funds can find it in the Combining Statements of Non-
major Funds section of this report. Completing the financial section of the report are schedules on capital assets 
and other financial schedules. 



The MD&A is intended to explain the significant changes in financial position and differences in operation 
between the current and prior years. Significant changes from the prior year are explained in the following 
paragraphs. 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

A condensed version of the Statement of Net Assets at June 30, 2017 follows: 

Net Position at Year-end 

Governmental Business-type Total 
Activities Activities Government 

Cash and Investments S 129,277 $ 210,279 $ 339,556 
Other assets 63,319 89,158 152,477 
Capital assets 1,311,228 2,929,867 4,241,095 

Total assets $ 1,503,825 $ 3,229,305 $ 4,733,130 

Deferred Outflow of Resources -

Pensions $ 218,818 $ - $ 218,818 

Other liabilities $ 20,996 $ 72,889 $ 93,885 
Long-term liabilities 1,120,499 300,593 1,421,092 

Total liabilities 1,141,495 373,482 1,514,977 

Deferred Inflow of Resources -
Pensions 34,725 - 34,725 

Net assets 
Investment in capital assets, -
Net of related debt 558,215 2,629,275 3,187,490 

Restricted - - -
Unrestricted (11.792) 226,548 214,757 

Total net position $ 546,423 $ 2,855,823 $ 3,402,246 

During the year ended June 30, 2017, the following changes affected the balance of net position: cash and 
investments decreased by $335,799 from the prior year. Long-term debt, including net pension liability increased 
by a net amount of $365,563. Capital expenditures in the governmental activities funds totaled $295,110 and in 
the enterprise fund totaled $161,338. 



A condensed version of the Statement Activities follows: 

Governmental and Proprietary Activities 
For the year ended June 30,2017 

Governmental Business-type Total 
Activities Activities Government 

Revenues 
Program Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 77,540 $ 882,281 $ 959,821 
General Revenues: 
Taxes 259,122 - 259,122 
Franchise fees 101,495 - 101,495 
Licenses and permits 75,571 - 75,571 
Intergovernmental 57,608 128,698 186,306 
Unrestricted Investment earnings 904 904 
Miscellaneous 31,577 - 31,577 
Transfers 299,626 (299,626) -

Total revenues and transfers 902,540 712,257 1,614,797 

Exoenses 
General government 262,712 - 262,712 
Public safety 518,354 - 518,354 
Streets and bridges 169,981 - 169,981 
Health and sanitation 885 - 885 
Utility services-Water and Sewer - 690,330 690,330 
Interest and fiscal charges 27,142 - 27,142 

Total Expenses 979,074 690,330 1,669,404 

Increase {Decrease) in net position $ (76,535) $ 21,927 $ (54,608) 

Governmental activities 
Governmental program expenses were higher than prior year by roughly $49,971. Revenues were higher by 
$9,078. The net result is an overall $76,535 decrease in net position over the prior year 

Business-type activities 
The water and sewer fund had an operating income of $21,927 for the year after transfers out to other funds 
totaling $299,626. Operating revenues were up by $23,970 and operating transfers out were down by $95,127. 

Budgetary Highlights 

Over the course of the year the Town Council revised the budget only once resulting in an overall decrease in 
general fund revenues over expenditures of $4,804. In total, the general fund's expenditures were $42,141 more 
than budgeted and revenues were $16,136 more than budgeted for a total net unfavorable budget variance of 
$26,006. After net operating transfers in of $354,743 and proceeds from long-term debt in the amount of $26,178, 
the general fund finished the year with an overall unfavorable budget variance of $42,085. 



Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2017 the Town had $4,24i,096 invested in capital assets, including police and fire equipment, park 
and recreation facilities, buildings, and water and sewer lines. The Town acquired assets of $295,110, net of 
dispositions in the general fund. In the enterprise fund $161,338 was invested in capital assets. Depreciation 
however, totaled a net of $388,326 resulting in a net increase in capital assets of $68,122 (additions net of deletions 
and accumulated depreciation). 

Capital Assets at Year-end 

Governmental 
ActivlUes 

Business-type 
Activities Totals 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Land and improvements $ 111,031 $ 111,031 $ 111,031 $ 111,031 
Constfuct on In progress 20,000 0 20,000 0 
Buildings and Improvements 1.167,985 1,181,345 1,167,985 1,181,345 
Furniture, fixtures and 0 0 

equipment 378,108 428.695 378,108 428,695 
Veh cles and tractors 876.733 1,127.896 876,733 1,127,896 
Water lines, wells, extensions 0 0 

and equipment 2,971.036 3,013,876 2,971,036 3,013,876 
Treatment facility, lines 0 0 

and equipment 2,852 165 2,970,662 2,852,165 2,970,662 
Subtotal $ 2,553,857 $ 2,848 967 $ 5,823 201 $ 5,984,539 $ 8,377,058 $ 8,833,505 

Accumulated depreciation 1,413,059 1,537 738 2,925,547 3,054,671 4,204,084 4,592,410 
Capital assets, net $ 1,140.797 $ 1,311 228 $ 2,897,654 $ 2,929,867 $ 4,172,974 $ 4,241,096 

Debt Outstanding 

At year-end, the Town had $1,053,607 of outstanding long-term debt. This debt represents the balance owed of 
$17,509 on the Capital Lease purchase of a new Backhoe for the Street, the balance owed of $61,550 on the 
Capital Lease purchase of two Police Cars, the balance owed of $23,762 on the Capital Lease purchase of a Police 
Car, the balance owed on the purchase of a new Fire Truck in the amount of $ 142,193, and Street Improvement 
Bonds totaling $508,000. In addition, a total of $300,593 was owed on Revenue Bonds issued to fund the 
construction of a new water well. More detailed information on the Town's long-term liabilities is presented in 
the notes to the financial statements. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No.68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, the Town is 
reporting a net pension liability of $367,485 on the statement of net position for governmental activities as of 
June 30, 2017. Additional information about the Town's net pension liability is presented in the notes to the 
financial statements. 



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

The Town is projecting excess expenditures in the General Fund of $338,931 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018, 
before transfers in/out from/to other funds. After transfers totaling a net of $335,000, the General Fund is projecting 
an excess of expenditures of $3,931. The enterprise fiind is projecting a net operating income of $313,696, before any 
transfers in/out to the General Fund and debt payments on revenue bonds. After transfers the enterprise fund is 
projecting a surplus of $38,696. 

Financial Contact 

The Town's financial statements are designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a 
general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the Town's accountability for the revenues it receives. 
If you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact Theresa Anderson, 
the Town Clerk at 931 Bryan Street, Cottonport, LA 71327. 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

ASSETS 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits $129,277 $146,911 $276,188 
Receivables: 

Accounts 0 87,319 87,319 
Taxes 10,870 0 10,870 
Accrued Interest 0 261 261 
Other 52,449 1,578 54,027 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and interest-bearing deposits 0 63,368 63,368 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 1.311.228 2.929.867 4.241.096 

TOTAL ASSETS $1,503,825 $3,229,305 $4,733,129 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Resources related to pension 218.818 0 218.818 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable $0 $3,393 $3,393 
Due to other funds 20,996 6,128 27,124 
Payable from restricted assets -

Customers' deposits 0 63,368 63,368 
Capital lease payable 245,014 0 245,014 
Bonds payable 508,000 300,593 808,593 
Net pension liability 367.485 0 367.485 

Total Liabilities 1.141.495 373.482 1.514.977 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Resources related to pension 34.725 0 34.725 

NET POSITION 

Investment in capital assets, net of related debt 558,215 2,629,275 3,187,490 
Restricted 107,635 0 107,635 
Unrestricted 1119.427) 226.548 107.122 

TOTAL NET POSITION $546,423 $2,855,823 $3,402,246 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
10 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

-Net (Expenses) Revenue and Change in Net Assets-

ACTIVITIES 
Governmental activities; 

Expenses 
Charges for 

Services 
Governmental 

Activities 

Business-
Type 

Activities Total 

General government $262,712 $0 $(262,712) $0 $(262,712) 
Public safety: 0 

Police 388,520 77,540 (310,979) 0 (310,979) 
Fire 120,958 0 (120,958) 0 (120,958) 
City Court 8,876 0 (8,876) 0 (8,876) 

Streets and bridges 169,981 0 (169,981) 0 (169,981) 
Health and sanitation 885 0 (885) 0 (885) 

Interest and fiscal charges 27,142 0 (27.142) 0 (27.142) 

Total Governmental Activities 979,073 77,540 (901,533) 0 (901,533) 

Business-type activities: 
Water and Sewer 690.330 882.281 0 191.951 191.951 

Total Business-type Activities 690.330 882.281 0 191.951 191.951 

Total Town of Cottonport 1.669.403 959,821 (901.533) 191.951 (709.582) 

GENERAL REVENUES 
Taxes 259,122 0 259,122 
Franchise Fees 101,495 0 101,495 
Licenses and permits 75,571 0 75,571 
Intergovernmental 57,608 128,698 186,306 
Unrestricted investment earnings 0 904 904 
Miscellaneous 31,577 0 31,577 

Transfers, net 299.626 (299.626) 0 

Total general revenues, special 
items and transfers 824.998 (170,024) 654,974 

Change in net position (76,535) 21,927 (54,608) 

Net position beginning of year 622,958 2.833.897 3.456.855 

Net position end of year $546,423 $2,855,824 $3,402,248 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 

11 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS AND 

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

General 
Fund 

Sales Tax 
Fund 

Volunteer Fire 
Department 

Fund 

Capital Projects 
Fund 

Street Overlay 

Non 
Major 
Funds 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and Interest-bearing deposits 
Receivables; 

Taxes 
Accrued interest 
Other 
Due from other funds 

TOTAL ASSETS 

$32,513 $17,772 

0 
0 

52,449 
0 

10,870 
0 
0 
0 

$78,840 

0 
0 
0 
0 

$153 

0 
0 
0 
0 

$0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

$84,962 $28,642 $78.840 $153 $0 

$129,277 
0 

10,870 
0 

52,449 
0. 
0 

$192,596 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable 
Due to other funds 

Total liabilities 

$0 
20,996 
20,996 

$0 
0 

$0 
_L 

$0 
_Q. 

$0 
0 
0 

$0 
20.996 
20,996 

FUND BALANCES 

Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

0 
63.965 
63.965 

28,642 
0. 

28.642 

78,840 
0 

78.840 

153 
0 

153 

107,635 
63.965 
171,600 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $84,962 $28,642 $78,840 $153 $0 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are differrent 
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 

and therefore are not reported in the funds. 
Less: accumulated depreciation 
Some liabilities, Including bonds payable, are not due and payable 

in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds 
Net pension liability does not require the use of current finartcial resources 

and therefore is not reported in the funds. 
The net effect of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions do not require the use of current 
financial resources and therefore are not reported In the funds. 

NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

2,848,967 
(1.537,738) 1,311,228 

{753,014) 

(367,485) 

184.093 
$546,423 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
12 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Sales Volunteer Capital Non Totals 
General Tax Fire Projects Major Govt'l 
Fund Fund Department Fund - Funds Funds 

Fund Street Pro] 

REVENUES 
Taxes $36,525 $136,005 $86,592 0 $0 $259,122 
Franchise Fees 101,495 0 0 0 0 101,495 
Licenses and permits 75,571 0 0 0 0 75,571 
Intergovernmental 39,492 0 18,116 0 0 57,608 
Fines and forfeits 77,540 0 0 0 0 77,540 
Miscellaneous 41.257 29 0 0 0 41.287 

TOTAL REVENUES 371.880 136,034 104.708 0 0 612.623 

EXPENDITURES 
Current -

General government 218,843 1,709 0 0 0 220,552 
Public Safety: 

Police 359,346 0 0 0 0 359,346 
Fire 20,607 0 43,500 0 0 64,107 
City Court 8,876 0 0 0 0 8,876 

Streets and bridges 147,229 0 0 0 0 147,229 
Health and sanitation 885 0 0 0 0 885 

Capital outlay 66,422 0 248,688 0 0 315,110 
Debt Senrice -

Principal retirement 0 0 0 0 131,228 131,228 
Interest and fiscal charges 0 0 0 0 27.142 27.142 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 822.207 1.709 292.188 0 158.370 1.274.475 
Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures (450.327) 134,325 (187.480) 0 (158,370) (661.852) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Loan proceeds 26,178 0 174,985 0 0 201,163 
Operating transfers in 382,000 0 0 0 158,370 540,370 
Operating transfers out (27.257) (175.000) (38.487) 0 0 (240.744) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 380.921 (175.000) 136,498 0 158.370 500.789 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 
and other sources (uses) (69,406) (40,675) (50.983) 0 0 (161,063) 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 133.371 69.317 129.822 153 0 332.663 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $63,965 $28,642 $78,840 $153 $0 $171,600 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
13 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES 

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL 
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Net change in fund balances - Governmental Funds 

The change In net position reported for governmental activities Is in the 
Statement of Activities Is different because: 

$(161,063) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. 
However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets 
is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. 

Capital expenditures net of dispositions 
Depreclat on expense 

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental 
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities In the 
statement of net position. Repayment of debt princlpa! is an 
expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces 
long-term liabilities In the statement of net position. 

Principal paid 
Proceeds from long-term debt 

Governmental funds report current year pension contributions as 
expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, these contributions 
Town's proportionate share of the plan's pension expense is reported 
as pension expense 

295,110 
(124,680) 

131,228 
(201,163) 

(26,257) 

The Town's proportionate share of non-employer contributions to the 
pension plans do not provide current financial resources and are not 
reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 10,290 

Change In net position of governmental activities $(76,535) 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
14 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUND 
JUNE 30, 2017 

Business-type 
Activities 

ASSETS 
Cash and Interest-bearing bonds $146,911 
Receivables: 

Accounts 87,319 
Other receivables i .578 
Accrued Interest 261 

Restricted assets: 
Cash and Interest-bearing deposits 63,368 

Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 2,929,867 

TOTAL ASSETS $3,229,305 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $3,393 
Due to other funds 6,128 
Payable from restricted assets -

Customers' deposits 63,368 
Revenue bonds payable 300,593 

Total Liabilities 373.482 

NET POSITION 
Investment In capital assets, net of related debt 2,629,275 
Unrestricted 226,548 

TOTAL NET POSITION $2,855,823 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services -

Water services 
Sewer services 
LAWCO water line 

Enterprise 
Fund 

$576,163 
176,737 
129.381 

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 882.281 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Water department 
Sewer department 
General and administrative 
Depreciation 

336 954 
158 644 

67,781 
129.124 

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 682.503 

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 199.778 

NONOPERATING REVENUES fEXPENSESI: 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Grant revenues 

904 
(7,828) 

128.698 

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 121.774 

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING TRANSFERS 32L552 

OPERATING TRANSFERS IN (OUT): 
Operating transfers out (299.626) 

TOTAL OPERATING TRANSFERS (299.626) 

NET INCOME (LOSS) 

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

21,927 

2.833.896 

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $2,855,823 

The accompan^ng notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppiiers 
Payments to empioyees for saiaries and benefits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Enterprise 
Fund 

$873,772 
(570,604) 
(179.076) 

124.092 

Cash fiows from noncapital financing activities; 
Due (from) to other funds 
Net increase (decrease) in bonds payat^e 
Operating transfers to other funds 

Net cash provided by/(used) for noncapital financing activities 

4,044 
(34,407) 

(299.626) 

(329.990) 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Purchase of Capital Assets 
Non-recurring grant revenues 

Net cash provided by/(used) for capital and related financing activities 

(161,338) 
128,698 

(32.640) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
interest received from interest beanng deposits 
interest paid 

Net cash provided by/(used) for investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

904 
(7.828) 

(6.924) 

(245,462) 

455.739 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $210,279 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Operating income (loss) 
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by operating activities; 
Depreciation 

Changes in assets and iiabiiities: 
(increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(increase) decrease in other receivables 
increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
increase (decrease) in customer deposits 

$199,778 

129,124 

(7,790) 
371 

(196,301) 
f1.090) 

Net cash provided by/(used) for operating activities $124,092 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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ASSETS 

TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Agency 
Funds 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 
Due from other funds 

$6,143 
27.124 

TOTAL ASSETS $33.267 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $33,267 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 33.267 

NET POSITION $0 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2017 

INTRODUCTION 

The Town of Cottonport (Town) was incorporated on March 28. 1896. On October 21, 1924, under the 
provisions of the Lawrason Act, the Town began operating under a Mayor-Council form of government. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town of Cottonport conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governments. Such accounting and reporting procedures also conform to the 
requirements of Louisiana Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the industry audit guide. Audits of State and 
Local Governmental Units. 

Financial Reporting Entitv. 

Government Accounting Standards Board Statement (GASB) 14 established criteria for determining which 
component units should be considered part of the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana for financial reporting 
purposes. The basic criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is financial 
accountability. The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability. 
These criteria include: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and; 
a. The ability of the Town to impose its will on that organization and/or 
b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose 

specific financial burdens on the Town. 
2. Organizations, to which the Town does not appoint a voting majority, but are fiscally dependent 

on the Town. 
3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading if data of 

the organization is not Included because of the nature of significance of the relationship. 

Based upon the application of the foregoing criteria, the volunteer fire department as a governmental 
organization is considered a part of the Town and is thus included in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES 

A. Implementation of New Accounting Standards. 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana implemented GASB Statement 
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis-far State and Local 
Governments (GASB 34). This statement affects the manner in which the Town records transactions and 
presents financial information. 

State and local governments have traditionally used a financial reporting model substantially different from 
the one used to prepare private-sector financial reports. GASB 34 establishes new requirements and a 
new reporting model, much like private-sector financial reports, for the annual financial reports of state and 
local governments. The new format was developed to make annual reports of state and local governments 
easier to understand and more useful to users of governmental financial information. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis-GASB 34 requires the financial statements be accompanied by a 
narrative introduction and analytical overview of the Town's financial activities in the form of management's 
discussion and analysis (MD&A). This analysis is similar to the analysis provided in the annual reports of 
private-sector organizations. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Continued) 

N0TE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements-The reporting model includes financial statements prepared using 
full accrual accounting for all the Town's activities. This approach includes not just current assets and 
liabilities, but also capital and other long-term assets as well as long-term liabilities. Accrual accounting 
also reports all of the revenues and costs of providing services each year, not just those received or paid 
in the current year or soon thereafter. Government-wide financial statements Including the following: 

Statement of Net Assefs-The statement of net assets is designed to display the financial position of the 
Primary Government (governmental and business-type activities). The Town reports capital assets in the 
government-wide statement of net assets and reports depreciation expense-the cost of "using up" capital 
assets-in the statement of activities. The net assets of the Town are broken down into three categories-1) 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt; 2) restricted; and 3) unrestricted. 

Statement of Activities-Jhe statement of activities reports expenses and revenues in a format that focuses 
on the cost of each of the Town's functions. The expense of individual functions is compared to the revenue 
generated directly by the function. Accordingly, the Town had recorded capital assets and certain other 
long-term assets and liabilities in the statement of net assets and has reported all revenues and the cost of 
providing services under the accrual basis of accounting in the statement of activities. 

B. Basic Financial Statements. 

Basic financial statements consist of the following: 

• Government-wide financial statements, 

• Fund financial statements, and 

• Notes to the basic financial statements. 

The government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net assets and the statement of 
activities and report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Primary Government and its 
component units. As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the 
government-wide financial statements. All internal balances in the statement of net assets have been 
eliminated, with the exception of those representing balances between the governmental activities and the 
business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total government 
column. In the statement of activities, transactions between governmental and business-type activities 
have not been eliminated. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety (police, fire 
and city court), streets and bridges, health and sanitation and public improvements. The business-type 
activities of the Town include water and wastewater operations. 

20 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTE! SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct and indirect expenses of a given 
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or activity. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or activity, 
and 2) grants and contributions, including special assessments that are restricted to meeting the operational 
or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus. Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned or. for property tax revenues, in the period for which levied. Expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified-accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The Town in general 
considers revenues available if they are collected within 180 days after year-end, except for property taxes, 
which the Town considers available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Grants and similar 
items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met. Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt 
which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are 
recognized when payment is due. 

For the governmental funds financial statements, the Town consider all revenues susceptible to accrual 
and recognizes revenue if the accrual criteria are met. Specifically sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, 
interest, special assessments, charges for services, and other miscellaneous revenue are all considered to 
be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have 
been Incurred and all other eligibility requirements have been met and are recorded at the time of receipt 
or earlier, if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds. A fund is an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to 
their Intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstration compliance with finance-related 
legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and 
managerial requirements. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the municipality's primary fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
general government, except those required to be accounted for In another fund. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Continued) 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContlnued^ 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than 
expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific 
purposes. 

Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources retained and used for 
the payment of principal, interest, and related costs on those long-term obligations recorded in the 
general long-term obligations account group. 

Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed in the proprietary funds and trust 
funds). 

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund: 

Utility funds are used to account for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body is that 
the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through users charges: or (b) where the 
governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, 
and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, 
accountability, or other purposes. The Town of Cottonport's enterprise fund is the Water and 
Wastewater Utility Fund. 

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types: 

Fiduciary funds, which consist solely of Agency funds, account for assets held by the Town as a 
trustee or as an agent for individuals or other governmental units. The only fiduciary fund type 
used by the Town is the Agency Fund type. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve 
measurement of results of operations. Such funds have no equity accounts since all assets are 
due to individuals or entities at some future time. The funds account for assets held by the Town 
in an agency capacity for individuals or other governmental units. 

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,1989, generally 
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those 
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type 
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The government has elected not to follow 
subsequent private-sector guidance. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
Enterprise Funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for Enterprise 
Fund includes the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 
All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Continued) 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ^Continued) 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting. 

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected In these financial 
statements: 

1. The Town Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits it to the Mayor and Council not later than 
fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. 

2. A notice is published and the public is notified that the proposed budget is available for public 
inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called. 

3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the 
hearing. 

4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and 
implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of a resolution prior to the 
commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. 

5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program of function 
to another or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts 
estimated require the approval of the Town Council. 

6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America and are used as a management control device. Annual budgets are adopted for the 
General Fund, Sales Tax, Volunteer Fire Department, Debt Service, Capital Projects Funds (if any) and the 
Enterprise Fund. The Town maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with legal provisions 
embodied in the appropriated budget approved by the Town Council. The level of budgetary control (that 
IS, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) for the operating budget 
is within a fund. Budgeted amounts presented are as originally adopted and as further amended by the 
Town Council. 

E. Deposits and Investments. 

The Town's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. State law and 
the Town's investment policy allow the Town to invest in collateralized certificates of deposits, government 
backed securities, commercial paper, the state sponsored investment pool, and mutual funds consisting 
solely of government backed securities. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those 
investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the Town may deposit funds in 
demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state 
banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal officers in Louisiana. These 
are classified as investments if their original maturities exceed 90 days; however, if the original maturities 
are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which 
aooroximates market. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

N0TE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

F. Cash Flow Presentation. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Fund (Water & Sewer System Fund) consider 
all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when 
purchased to be cash equivalents. 

G. Bad Debts. 

Uncollectible amounts due for ad valorem taxes and customers' utility receivables are recognized as bad 
debts at the time information becomes available which would indicate the uncollectibility of the particular 
receivable. No allowance for uncollectible amounts was made due to the immateriality at June 30, 2017. 

H. Due to and Due from Other funds 

Interfund receivables and payables arise from interfund transactions and are recorded by all funds affected 
in the period in which transactions are executed. 

I. Long-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Long-Term obligations 
of the Town consisted of Water Revenue Bonds. Series 2010, payable from proprietary fund revenues, an 
unsecured note payable from general revenues of the town, and a financing arrangement on a new fire 
truck payable from revenues generated by the Fire Department. 

J. Accumulated Unpaid Vacation and Other Employee Benefits. 

Town employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based upon their length of service. 

Vacation and sick leave are accounted for on a fiscal year basis beginning January 1®' through December 
31®^ 

Vacation leave is earned at the rate of five days to fifteen days per year depending on the employee's 
length of service with the Town. Vacation leave earned does not accumulate from year to year and expires 
on January 31®* of the succeeding year in which it was earned. 

Sick leave is earned at the rate of five days per year for employees who have reached full-time status and 
have been employed up to five years. Employees who have been employed greater than five years are 
granted an additional day for each year of employment over five years. Accumulated sick leave is not 
payable at the time of separation. 

At June 30, 2017, vested leave benefits have not been accrued as required by GASB Codification Section 
060, "Accounting for Compensated Absences", due to immateriality. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT. LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

N0TE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

K. Capital Assets 

Under GASB Statement No, 34, all capital assets, whether owned by governmental activities or business-
type activities are recorded and depreciated in the government-wide financial statements. No long-term 
capital assets or depreciation are shown in the governmental funds financial statements. 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, 
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or 
estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their 
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Town maintains a threshold level of $500 or more 
for capitalizing capital assets. 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the 
capitalized value of the assets constructed 

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful 
lives: 

Years 
Land Improvements (Infrastructure) 10 - 50 
Building and building improvements 20 - 60 
Service vehicles and moveable equipment 7-15 
Heavy equipment 10-20 
Office furniture and fixtures 5-10 

The proprietary fund is accounted for on a cost of service or "capital maintenance" measurement focus, 
and all assets and all liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with its activity are included on 
its balance sheet. 

Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets used by proprietary funds is charged as an expense against 
operations. Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method 
over the following useful lives: 

Water wells and waste collection system 40 - 50 
Water and sewer lines and meters 10-50 
Pumps, motors and compressors 10 - 40 
Service vehicles and moveable equipment 7-15 

L. Fund Eauitv of Fund Financial Statements 

The town adopted the provisions of GASB 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions which requires the fund balance amounts to be reported within the fund balance categories as 
frkllr»\A/«* 

7^ 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES fContlnuedl 

Non-spendable - Fund balance that is not in spendable form or Is legally or contractually required 
to be maintained intact. This category includes Items that are not easily converted to cash such as 
inventories or prepaid items. 
Restricted - Fund balance that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 
Committed - Fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes determined by the Town's 
highest level of decision making authority. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other 
purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
it employed to previously commit the funds. Committed fund balance is the result of either a policy 
of the Town or motions passed at a Town meeting committing the funds. 
Assigned - Fund balance that is constrained by the Town's intent to be used for specific purposes, 
but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent should be expressed by the Town. 
Unasslgned - Fund balance that is the residual classification for the general fund. 

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Under state law, the Town may deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the laws of the 
State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the Union, or the laws of the United States. The Town 
may invest in certificates and time deposits of the state banks organized under Louisiana law and national 
banks having principal offices in Louisiana. At June 30, 2017, the Town had cash and cash equivalents 
(book balance) totaling $345,699 as follows: 

Demand deposits $ 256,097 
Time deposits 89.602 

Total $ 345.699 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 
the Town's deposits may not be recovered or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under 
state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balance) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or 
similar federal security or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the 
pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with 
the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the Town or the pledging fiscal agent bank in a 
holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. Deposit balances (bank balances) 
totaled $347,780 at June 30, 2017. The Town's total bank balances were fully insured and collateralized 
with securities held in the name of the Town by the pledging financial institution's agent and, therefore, not 
exposed to custodial credit risk. 

NOTE 3. INVESTMENTS 

At June 30, 2017, the Town held investments totaling $89,602 In 180 day certificates of deposit. These 
investments are stated at cost, which approximate market, and are secured from risk by federal deposit 
insurance (see note 2). 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 

Accounts $ - $87,319 $ 87,319 
Franchise Taxes: 

Electric 16,895 0 16,895 
Telepone 1,252 0 1,252 
Cable 2,959 0 2,959 

Other 3.771 1,839 5,610 
$ 24.877 $ 89,158 $ 114,035 

Receivables totaling $114,036 consist of the following at June 30, 2017: 

Water and 
Sewer Total 

Beer Tax $ 1,272 $ $ $ 1,272 

Sales Tax - 10,870 10,870 

DOTD - - -

Volunteer Fire - - -

Housing Authority 26,300 - 26,300 

$ 27,572 $ 10,870 $ $ 38,442 

NOTES. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES 

The following is a summary of interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2017: 

Inlerfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 0 $ 20,996 
Enterprise Fund 0 6,128 
Agency Funds 27.124 0 

Totals $ 27.124 $ 27,124 

$87,319 $ 87.319 

0 16,895 
0 1.252 
0 2,959 

1,839 5,610 
$ 89.158 $ 114.035 

Due from other governmental agencies totaling $38,442 consisted of the following at June 30, 2017 

General Special Revenue Enterprise Total 

Beer Tax 1.272 $ - $ - $ 1,272 

Sales Tax - 10,870 - 10,870 

DOTD - - _ . 

Volunteer Fire - . - -
Housing Authority 26,300 - - 26.300 

S 27.572 $ 10.870 $ - $ 38.442 

NOTE 5. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES. PAYABLES 

The following is a summary of interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2017: 

Inlerfund Interfund 
Receivables Payables 

General Fund $ 0 $ 20,996 
Enterprise Fund 0 6,128 
Agency Funds 27.124 0 

Totals $ 27,124 $ 27,124 

NOTE 6. RESTRICTED ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 

Restricted assets were applicable to the following at June 30,2017: 

Customer Meter Deoosits $63,368 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land and Improvements 

Construction in Progress 

Total capital assets not 

being depreciated 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Buildings and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures, and 

Equipment 

Vehicles and Tractors 

Iota] capital assets 

being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for-

Buildings and Improvements 

Furniture, Fixtures, and 

Equipment 

Vehicles and Tractors 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total Capital assets 

being depreciated, net 

Balance 

06/30/16 

111,031 
20,000 

131,031 

1,167,985 

378,108 
876,733 

1,413,059 

1,009,767 

Additions 

2,422,826 $ 

532,296 $ 

414,742 
466,021 

13,360 

50,587 
251,163 

315,110 

28,646 

33,784 
62,250 
124,680 

Deletions 

(20,000) 

Balance 

06/30/17 

S 111,031 

J ' 
(20,000) $ 111,031 

$ 1,181,345 
$ 
$ 428,695 
$ 1,127,896 

$ 2,737,936 

$ 560,942 
$ 
S 448,526 
S 528,271 
$ 1,537,739 

$ 1,200,197 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, depreciation expense was $124,680. 

Business-type activities: 

Water department' 

Water lines, well and extensions 

and equipment 

Sewer department 

Treatment facility, lines and equipment 

Total Capital assets 

Less accumulated depreciation 

2,971,036 

2,852,165 
5,823,201 

(2.925,547) 

42,840 

118,498 
161.338 

(129,124) 

3,013,876 

2,970,663 
5,984,539 

(3,054,671) 

Total business-type assets 2,897,654 2,929,867 

For the year ended June 30,2017, depreciation expense was $129,124 

NOTE 8. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transaction for the Town for the year ended June 30, 2017: 
General Revenue 

Obliaalion Bonds 
Payable at June 30,2016 $ 609,697 $335,000 
Add: New Debt Issued 201,163 
Less: Payments Made f 131.2281 (34.4071 
Payable at June 30,2017 $ 753.014 $ 300.593 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTES. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT continued 

Debt issues are comprised of the following: 

General Obligation-
Lease Obliaations-
TheTown of Cottonport entered into a lease agreement on September 19 ,2013, as lessee for the financing 
of a 2012 Case 580N Loader Backhoe in the amount of $50,385. The lease agreement qualifies as a 
capital lease for accounting purposes (lease contains an option to purchase the leased property) and 
therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum payments as of the date of its 
inception. The carrying value of the asset under the capital lease is $44,987. The following is a schedule 
of future minimum lease payments under this capital lease, and the present value of the net minimum lease 
payments as of June 30, 2017: 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 $ 9,360 
2019 9.360 

18,720 
Less: amount representing interest f1.211l 
Present value of future lease payments $ 17.509 

The Town of Cottonport entered into a lease agreement on March 21, 2017, as lessee for the financing of 
a two police vehicles in the amount of $73,382. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for 
accounting purposes (lease contains an option to purchase the leased property) and therefore, has been 
recorded at the present value of the future minimum payments as of the date of its inception. The carrying 
value of these assets under the capital lease is $73,382. The following is a schedule of future minimum 
lease payments under this capital lease, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of 
June 30, 2017: 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 $16,312 
2019 16,312 
2020 16,312 
2021 16,312 
2022 1.361 

66,609 
Less: amount representing interest (5.0591 
Present value of future lease payments $ 61.550 

The Town of Cottonport entered into a lease agreement on December 20, 2016, as lessee for the financing 
of a police vehicle in the amount of $26,178. The lease agreement qualifies as a capital lease for accounting 
purposes (lease contains an option to purchase the leased property) and therefore, has been recorded at 
the present value of the future minimum payments as of the date of its inception. The carrying value of 
these assets under the capital lease is $21,815. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease 
payments under this capital lease, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of June 
30, 2017: 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 $ 5,888 
2019 5,888 
2020 5,888 
2021 5,888 
2022 2.943 

26,495 
Less: amount representing interest (2.7331 
Present value of future lease oavments $ 23.762 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Continued) 

General Obligation (Continued)-
Lease Obliaations-

The Town of Cottonport entered into a lease agreement on February 2, 2017, as lessee for the financing 
of a 2017 Rosenbauer Pumper Fire Truck in the amount of $224,985. The lease agreement qualifies as a 
capital lease for accounting purposes (lease contains an option to purchase the leased property) and 
therefore, has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum payments as of the date of its 
inception. The carrying value of these assets under the capital lease Is $218,735. The following is a 
schedule of future minimum lease payments under this capita! lease, and the present value of the net 
minimum lease payments as of June 30. 2017; 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 $ 38,487 
2019 38,487 
2020 38,487 
2021 38.487 

153,948 
Less: amount representing interest (11,755) 
Present value of future lease payments $ 142.193 

Certificates of Indebtedness-
The Town of Cottonport executed $800,000 of Certificates of Indebtedness for $800,000, Series 2013, to 
fund the Street Improvement Project. The Certificates bear an interest rate of 2.85%. The annual 
requirements to amortize the debt including interest payments of $51,927 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 $ 92,478 
2019 93,255 
2020 93,947 
2021 93,552 
2022-2023 186.695 

Revenue Bonds-
The Town of Cottonport issued Water Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 on May 12, 2010, to fund the 
construction of a new water well. The bonds bear Interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 4.8% on $425,000 
and no interest on $75,000 of the bonds. The annual requirements to amortize the revenue bonds including 
interest payments of $26,087 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 
2018 45,547 
2019 46,129 
2020 46,588 
2021 46,924 
2022-2025 141.492 

S326.680 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTE 9 CHANGES IN AGENCY FUND 

The following is a summary of changes in assets and liabilities of the Agency Fund for the year ended June 
30. 2017: 

Balance Balance 
Assets 7/1/2016 Additions Deletions 6/30/2017 

Cash 
Due from other funds 

$ 19,389 
9,259 

$1,002,530 
1,018,414 

$1,015,776 
1,000,549 

$ 6,143 
27,124 

$28,648 $2,020,944 $2,016,325 $33,267 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Retirement payable 

$28,648 
0 

$549,724 
0 

$545,105 
0 

$ 33,267 
0 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 
Retirement payable 

$28,648 $549,724 $545,105 $33,267 

NOTE 10. AD VALOREM TAXES 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 of each year. Taxes are levied 
by the Town in September or October and are actually billed to taxpayers in December. Billed taxes 
become delinquent on January 1 of the following year. The Town bills and collects its own property taxes 
using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Avoyelles Parish. Ad valorem tax revenues 
are budgeted in the year billed. For the year ended June 30, 2017, taxes of 5.68 mills were levied on 
property with assessed valuations totaling $6,471,970 and were dedicated as follows: 

General corporate purposes 5.68 mills 
Total taxes levied were $36,760. Taxes receivable at June 30, 2017, were $421.19. 

NOTE 11. DEDICATION OF PROCEEDS AND FLOW OF FUNDS - SALES AND USE TAX LEVY 

On October 21, 1995, the voters of the Town of Cottonport approved a one (1%) sales and use tax for a 
period of twenty-five years from April 1,1996. The revenues derived from said sales and use tax are to be 
used for the purpose of constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, operating and maintaining sewers 
and sewerage disposal works, waterworks, facilities, public streets and drainage facilities. 

NOTE 12. WATER PURCHASE CONTRACTS 

The Town of Cottonport has various contract agreements in effect for the sales of water with details and 
terms as follows: 

1. Louisiana Water Company fLAWCO) - Contract effective July 1, 2014, requiring the Town of 
Cottonport to supply water for resale in Mansura, Louisiana for a period of five (5) years at a 
rate of $1.84 per 1,000 gallons with a minimum of $500 per month. 

2. Louisiana Correctional Facilities Corporation - Verbal agreement requiring the Town of 
Cottonport to supply water for resale to the Medium Security Prison in Cottonport at a rate of 
$1.42 per 1,000 gallons. The rate was increased to 1.70 per 1,000 gallons effective 
August 1, 2015. 

NOTE 13. ROAD MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

On July 1, 1998 the Town of Cottonport entered into a maintenance agreement with the Department of 
Transportation and Development for one-year period whereby the Town will maintain its municipal streets 
and roads, including mowing and litter pickup, and the Department of Transportation and Development will 
reimburse the Town with semi-annual payments totaling $5,000, which was determined at a rate of $1,000 
per mile for five miles of undivided streets per year. This contract is renewed on an annual basis. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

NOTE 14. SALES TAX COLLECTION AGREEMENT 

On June 5,1992, the Town of Cottonport entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the Avoyelles 
Parish School Board for a one year period commencing on July 1, 1992, whereby the School Board will 
collect the sales and use taxes, including interest, penalties, fees and cost, levied by the Town of Cottonport 
under the Town's ordinances for a monthly fee of 1.5 percent of the gross tax revenues collected by the 
School Board. The School Board will remit collections to the Town on a monthly basis no later than the 
lO'f' day of each month after reasonable and necessary cost and expenses of collection in administration 
of the taxes have been deducted, including the collection fee. This agreement is renewed annually. 

NOTE 15. FRANCHISE AGREEMENTS 

The Town of Cottonport has entered into franchise agreements with various public utility companies that 
provide services within the corporate limits of the Town, A summary of each such agreement follows: 

1. Central Louisiana Electric Company. Inc. (CLECO) - effective July 2013, for a period of thirty 
(30) years. Franchise fee is based on four percent (4%) of the gross receipts from the sale 
and delivery of electric energy for residential and commercial purposes billed on commercial 
and residential rates within the Town. Fees payable quarterly within thirty (30) days of the end 
of the quarter. Other franchise provisions are as follows: 

A. Franchise payments will be reduced in an amount equal to the sum of any new or 
increased taxes of any nature whatsoever levied by the municipality and payable to 
CLECO (except uniform ad valorem taxes, based on property values). 

B. CLECO will provide electric services to the Town and reduce street light rates. 
2. SuddenLink Cable - effective June 10, 2009 for a period of fifteen (15) years. The franchise 

fee is based on five percent (5%) of gross subscription receipts, less sales taxes, federal excise 
tax and copyright fees, received by the company within the Town limits. Fees are payable to 
the Town quarterly, by the 10"'of the following month. 

3. Reliant Energy Entex tformerlv Entex) - effective July 22, 2010, for a period of fifteen (15) 
years. Franchise fee Is based on four percent (4%) of the gross receipts from the sale of gas 
for residential and commercial purposes billed on residential and commercial rates within the 
limits of the Town. Fees are payable on or before the 10"" of each February. 

4. CenturvTei (formerly Central Louisiana Telephone Comoanvt - effective January 1,1994, for a 
period of twenty-five (25) year. The franchise fee is based on five percent (5%) of the approved 
tariff rate for local access line telephone service provided by the Company within the corporate 
limits of the Town and the Company shall provide free to the Town three (3) local access lines. 
Fees are payable no later than sixty (60) days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

NOTE 16. PENSION PLANS 

The following note disclosures about the Town's pension plans are required by GASfi Statement No. 
68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. 
Plan Descriptions: 

Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
Eligible employees of the Town of Cottonport are provided with pensions through Plan B of the 
Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana. 

Municipal Police Employees Retirement System 
Eligible police officers of the Town of Cottonport are provided with pensions through the Municipal 
Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana. This system is a multiple-employer (cost 
sharing), public employee retirement systems (MPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined 
benefit pension plan administered by the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of 
Louisiana. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

Benefits Provided: 

Municipal Employees Retirement System 
MERS provides retirement, disability, and sun/ivor benefits. The monthly allowance for any 
member of Plan B consists of an amount equal to two percent of the member's monthly average 
final compensation multiplied by his (her) years of creditable service. Employees who were hired 
prior to January 1, 2013, are eligible to retire at any age with 30 years of creditable service and at 
age 60 with 10 or more years of creditable service. Employees who were hired after January 1, 
2013, are eligible to retire at age 67 with 7 or more years of creditable service; at age 62 with 10 or 
more years of creditable service; at age 55 with 30 or more years of creditabie service; or at any 
age with 25 years of creditable service, exclusive of military service and unused side leave. In lieu 
of termination employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of Plan B 
who is eligibie to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for 
up to three years and defer the receipt of benefits. Under Plan B, a member is eligible to retire and 
receive a disabiiity benefit if he (she) has at least 10 years of creditable service. 

Upon retirement caused by disability, a member of Plan B shall be paid a disability benefit equal to 
the lesser of thirty percent of his (her) final average compensation or two percent of his (her) final 
average compensation multiplied by his (her) years of creditable service, whichever is greater; or 
an amount equal to two percent of the member's final average compensation multiplied by his (her) 
years of creditable service, projected to his earliest normal retirement age. Upon the death of any 
member of Plan B with 5 or more years of creditable service, not eligible for normal retirement, the 
plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse as outlined in the statutes. The System is 
authorized under state law to grant a cost of living increase to members who have been retired for 
at least one year. 

Municipal Police Emplovees' Retirement System 
MPERS provides regular retirement, early retirement, disability, and survivor benefits. Employees 
who were hired prior to January 1, 2013, are eligibie to retire at any age with 25 years of creditable 
service; at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service; and at age 55 with 12 years of creditable 
service. An employee is eligible for early retirement with a reduced benefit at any age after 20 
years of creditable service. Benefit rates are three and one-third percent of average finai 
compensation multiplied by years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. Upon 
the death of an active contributing member, or disability retiree, the plan provides for benefits for 
the surviving spouse and minor children. The benefits range from forty to sixty percent of average 
final compensation to the surviving spouse and ten percent of average final compensation to minor 
children. Employees who were hired after January 1, 2013, are eligible for regular retirement, early 
retirement, disability, and survivor benefits based on Hazardous Duty and Non Hazardous Duty 
sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, employees are eligible for regular retirement at 
any age with 25 years of creditable service and at age 55 with 12 years of creditable service. Under 
the Non Hazardous Duty sub plan, employees are eligible for regular retirement at any age with 30 
years of creditable service; at age 55 with 25 years of creditable service; and at age 60 with 10 
years of creditable service. Under both sub plans, an employee is eligible for early retirement with 
a reduced benefit at any age after 20 years of creditable service. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (Continued) 
Under the Hazardous and Non Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are there percent and 
two and a half percent, respectively, of average final compensation multiplied by years of creditable 
service not to exceed 100% of final salary. A member is eligible to elect to enter the deferred 
retirement option plan (DROP) when he is eligible for regular retirement based on the members' 
sub plan participation. An initial Benefit Option Plan is available to members who are eligible for 
regular retirement and have not participated in DROP. The Initial Benefit Option program provides 
both a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 month of regular monthly retirement benefit, plus 
a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life. Upon the death of an active contributing member, or 
disability retiree, the plan provides for benefits for the surviving spouse and minor children. The 
benefits range from twenty-five to fifty-five percent of average final compensation for the surviving 
spouse and ten percent of average final compensation to minor children, if the deceased member 
had less than 10 years of service, the beneficiary will receive a refund of employee contributions 
only. The Board of Trustees is authorized to provide annual cost of living adjustments computed 
on the amount of the current regular retirement, disability, beneficiary or survivor's benefit, not to 
exceed 3% in any given year. 

Contributions: 

Municipal Employees Retirement System 
According to state statute, contribution requirements for all employers are actuarially determined 
each year. The Town of Cottonport's required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2017, 
was 11% of covered payroll. Contributions to the pension plan were $28,455 for the year ended 
June 30, 2017. The system also receives ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing funds that 
are recognized as employer contributions and are considered support from non-employer 
contributing entities, but are not considered special funding situations. The amount of non-employer 
contributions recognized as revenue in the government-wide governmental activities statement of 
activities was $9,029 for the year ended June 30, 2017. 

Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System 
Employer contributions are actuarially determined each year as required by state law but cannot be 
less than 9% of the employees' earnable compensation excluding overtime but including state 
supplemental pay. The Town of Cottonport's required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 
2017, was 31.75% of covered payroll. Contributions to the pension plan were $13,688. The system 
also receives insurance premium taxes that are recognized as employer contributions and are 
considered support from non-employer contributing entities, bur are not considered special funding 
situations. The amount of non-employer contributions recognized as revenue in the government-
wide activities statement of activities was $1,261 for the year ended June 30. 2017. 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions: 
At June 30, 2017, the Town reported a total of $367,485 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of MERS and MPERS combined. The net pension liability was measured as of 
June 30,2016, for both plans and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by actuarial valuations as of that date. The Town's proportion of the net pension 
liability was based on projections of the Town's long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plans relative to the projected contributions of ail participating employers, actuarially determined. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued): 

At June 30, 2016, the Town's proportion was .366% for MERS which was an increase of .069% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2015. At June 30, 2016, the Town's proportion was 
.0067% for MPERS, which was an increase of .0028% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2015. 

For the year ended June 30. 2017, the Town recognized pension expense of $26,087 for MERS 
and $13,688 for MPERS. At June 30 2017, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the foilowing sources: 

MERS MPERS Total 

Deferred Outlows of Resources: 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 

Difference between expected and Actual Experience 

Changes in assumptions 

Changes in proportion 

Employer contributions subsequent to 

measurement date 

74,507 

2,493 

15,147 

34,346 

28,455 

9,774 $ 

3,088 

37,320 

13,688 

84,281 

2,493 

18,235 

71,666 

42,143 

$ 154,948 $ 63,870 $ 218,818 

MERS 
Deferred Intflows of Resources: 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

2,930 

MPERS 

26,390 

Total 

$ 4,391 $ 1,010 $ 5,401 
4 4 

29,320 

7,321 $ 27,404 $ 34,725 

$42,143 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town's 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

MERS MPERS Total 
2017 
2018 
2019 
2020 

$ 34,969 
38,942 
33,919 
11,341 

$ 119,171 

$ 16,107 
(5,010) 
9,199 
2,482 

$ 22,778 

$ 51,076 
33,932 
43,118 
13,823 

$ 141,949 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

A summary of the actuarial methods and assumptions used in determining thetotai pension iiabiiity 
as of June 30,2016, are as follows: 

MERS MPERS 
Inflation 2.875% 2.875% 

Salary increases 5.0% including 6.25% average, including 
inflation Inflation 

Investment rate of return 7.50% 7.5%, net of 
investment expense 

For MERS, mortality rates were based on RP-2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Tables for employees; 
RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality Tables for annuitants and beneficiaries; and RP-
2000 Disabled Lives Mortality Tables for disabled annuitants. Form MPERS, the mortality rates 
were based on PR-2000 Combined Healthy with Blue Collar Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables for 
healthy annuitants and beneficiaries; RP-2000 Employee Table for active members; and RP-2000 
Disabled Lives Mortality Tables for disabled annuitants. 

For MERS, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return 
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage and 
by adding expected inflation of 2.4% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. 
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class are 
summarized in the following tables: 

MERS: 
Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 

Public Fixed Income 35% 1.80% 

Public Equity 50% 2.60% 

Alternatives 15% 0.80% 

Other 0% 0.00% 

Total 100% 5.20% 

Inflation 2.50% 

Expected Arithmetic Nomlal Return 7.60% 
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Actuarial Assumptions continued): 

MPERS: 
Long-Term Expected 

Asset Class Target Allocation Real Rate of Return 

Equity 53% 3.69% 

Fixed Income 21% 0.49% 

Alternatives 20% 1.11% 

Other 6% 0.21% 

Total 100% 5.50% 

Inflation 2.75% 

Expected Arithmetic Nomial Return 8.25% 

Discount Rate: 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% for MERS and MPERS. The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating 
employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates approved by the Public Retirement 
Systems' Actuarial Committee, taking into consideration the recommendation of the system's 
actuary. Based on those assumptions, the System's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
available to make all project future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivitv of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Llabilitv to Changes 
in the Discount Rate: 
The following presents the Employer's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability using the 
discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Employer's proportionate share of the net pension (iability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.5%) or 
one percentage-point higher (8.5%) than the current rate as of June 30, 2017: 

MERS: Changes in Discount Rate 
PlanB 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%) 

Employer's 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability $393,218 $303,965 $227,814 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, (Continued) 

Actuarial Assumptions contlnuedl: 

MPERS: Changes in Discount Rate 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%) 

Employer's 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability $84,677 $63,520 $45,756 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Detailed information about MERS and MPERS' fiduciary net positions are available in the stand­
alone audit reports on their financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2016. Access to these 
reports can be found on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website, www.lla.la.qov. 

NOTE 17. FUND BALANCES 

The following are details of fund balance classifications: 

General Sales Tax Volunteer Other 
Fund Fund Fire Dept Funds Total 

Assigned $ - $ 28,642 $ 78,840 $ 153 $ 107,635 
Unassigned 64,080 - - - 64,080 
Total fund balances $ 64,080 $ 28,642 $ 78,840 $ 153 $ 171,715 — = : 

NOTE 18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The Town of Cottonport has evaluated subsequent events through November 28, 2017, the date which the 
financial statements were made available. 

NOTE 19. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

There are currently several pending matters against the Town that are being handled by the Town's 
insurance carrier or Attorney. The outcome of these matters is uncertain at this time. However, in legal 
counsel's opinion they should be adequately covered by insurance, subject to any applicable deductibles. 
There are also no known unasserted claims that the Town is aware of as of the date of this report. 

(Concluded) 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR 

133.371 

Variance 
with Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes $36,650 $37,120 $36,525 $(595) 
Franchise fees 101,000 101,700 101,495 (205) 
Licenses and permits 63,250 64,853 75,571 10,718 
Intergovernmental 34,300 34,179 39,492 5,313 
Fines and forfeits 57,100 80,992 77,540 (3.452) 
Miscellaneous 16.070 36,900 41,257 4,357 

TOTAL REVENUES 308,370 355,744 371,880 16,136 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 205,389 209,406 218,843 (9,437) 
Public safety; 

Police 325,136 363,197 359,346 3,851 
Fire 16,568 20,221 20,607 (386) 
City Court 8,800 9,658 8,876 782 

Streets and bridges 155,600 153,986 147,229 6,757 
Health and sanitation 3,800 1,395 885 510 
Capital outlay 22,203 50,203 66,422 (16.219) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 737.496 808,066 822.207 (14,141) 

Deficiency of revenues over expenditures (429,1261 (452,322) (450,327) 1,994 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES fUSESI 
Proceeds from long-term debt 0 28,000 26,178 (1.822) 
Operating transfers in 425,000 425,000 382,000 (43,000) 
Operating transfers out 0 (28.000) (27.257) 743 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 425,000 425.000 380.921 (44,079) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 
over expenditures and other uses $(4,126) $(27,322) (69,406) $(42,085) 

$63,965 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 

SALES TAX FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
with Final 

Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Miscellaneous 

$135,000 
30 

$135,360 
30 

$136,005 
29 

$645 
(1) 

TOTAL REVENUES 135.030 135.390 136.034 644 

EXPENDITURES 
General government: 

Collection Fee 
Miscellaneous 

2,800 
12 

2,800 
12 

1-709 
0 

1,091 
12 

Total general government expenditure 2.812 2.812 1.709 1.103 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 132.218 132.578 134.325 1.747 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES fUSES) 
Operating transfers out (150.000) (150.000) (175.000) (25.000) 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (150.000) (150.000) (175.000) (25.000) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
expenditures and other sources (uses) $(17,782) $(17,422) (40,675) $(23,253) 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 69.317 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $28,642 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Original 
Budget 

Final 
Budget Actual 

Variance 
with Final 
Budget 
Positive 

(Negative) 

REVENUES 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

$59,200 
17,000 

0 

$51,322 
17,000 

0 

$86,592 
18,116 

0 

$35,270 
1,116 

0 

TOTAL REVENUES 76.200 68.322 104,708 36,386 

EXPENDITURES 
Public safety; 

Fire 
Capital outlay 

30,000 
15.000 

50,000 
240.000 

43,500 
248.688 

6,500 
(8,688) 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 45.000 290,000 292,188 (2,188) 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 31.200 (221.678) (187.480) 34,198 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES fUSESi 
Loan proceeds 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

0 
0 

(30.102) 

175,000 
0 

(42,000) 

174,985 
0 

(38,487) 

15 
0 

3,513 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (30.102) 133.000 136,498 3,528 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 

over expenditures and other uses $1,098 $(88,678) (50,983) $37,726 

FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 129.822 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $78,840 

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of this financial statement. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES 

For The Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America and are used as a management control device. Annual budgets are adopted for the 
General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, Volunteer Fire Department Fund, Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects 
Funds (if any) and the Enterprise Fund. The Town maintains budgetary controls to ensure compliance with 
legal provisions embodied in the appropriated budget approved by the Town Council. The level of 
budgetary control (that Is, the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) 
for the operating budget is within a fund. Budgeted amounts presented are as originally adopted and as 
further amended by the Town Council. Budgetary appropriation lapse and the end of each fiscal year and 
must be re-appropriated for the following year in order to be expended. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF 

NET PENSION LIABILITY 
June 30, 2017 

Proportion of the net pension liability 
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
Covered-employee payroll 
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

Municipal Employees 
Retirement System 

June 30, 
2017 2016 2015 
0.37000% 0.2972% 0.2725% 

$ 303,965 $ 201,995 $ 127,926 
$ 258,679 $ 193,835 $ 207,043 

118% 104% 62% 

62.11% 68.71% 76.94% 

Proportion of the net pension liability 
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
Covered-employee payroll 
Proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered employee payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 

Municipal Police Employees 
Retirement System 

June 30, 

$ 
$ 

2017 
0.0001% 
63,520 
43,112 

147% 
66.04% 

2016 
0.00390% 

30,709 
18,984 

$ 
$ 

162% 
70.73% 

2015 
0.00107% 

66,946 $ 
$ 

N/A 
75.10% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the end of the prior fiscal year except 
for covered employee payroll. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS 

June 30, 2017 

Municipal Employees 
Retirement System 

June 30, 
2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contibution $ 24,178 $ 18,414 $ 19,669 
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution $ 24,178 $ 18,414 $ 19,669 

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - -

Covered-employee payroll $ 258,679 $ 193,835 S 207,042 
Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 11.00% 9.50% 9.50% 

Municipal Police Employees 
Retirement System 

June 30, 
2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contibution s 13,688 $ 5,600 $ -
Contributions in relation to the contractually 
required contribution s 13,688 $ 5,600 $ -

Contribution deficiency (excess) - - -

Covered-employee payroll $ 43,112 $ 18,894 $ -
Contributions as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 31.75% 29.50% N/A 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF REVENUES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

TAXES 
Ad Valorem Taxes $37,120 $36,525 $(5951 

TOTAL TAXES 37.120 36.525 (595) 

FRANCHISE FEES; 

Cleco Franchise 72,430 73,749 1,319 
Entex Franchise 11,533 10,467 (1,066) 
Galaxy Cable Franchise Fee 12,450 12,129 (321) 
Telephone Franchise Fee 5.287 5.150 (137) 

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 101.700 101.495 (205) 

LICENSES AND PERMITS 
Occupalional Licenses 61,670 72,378 10,708 
Builidng Permits 100 100 0 
Liquor Permits 3,073 3,073 0 
Moving Permits 10 20 10 

TOTAL LICENSES AND PERMITS 64.853 75.571 10,718 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
Beer taxes 5,081 4,818 (263) 
Housing Authority 13,620 14,620 1,000 
DOTD Road Maintenance 5,000 5,000 0 
Video Poker Revenue 10,478 14,454 3,976 
MIsc Income 0 600 600 

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 34.179 39.492 5.313 

FINES AND FORFEITS: 
Fines 70,401 61,361 (9,040) 
Court Cost 10,105 11,545 1,440 
City Court Revenue 496 4,635 4,149 

TOTAL FINES AND FORFEITS 80.992 77.540 (3,452) 

MISCELLANEOUS: 
Late Charges 56 57 1 
Excise Tax Refund 1,892 1,892 0 
Grass cutltng 1,850 2,020 170 
Rental Income - Community Cen 6,825 7,125 300 
Inter-Club Christmas Revenue 2,305 2,305 0 
Veteran's Memorial Revenue 0 650 650 
Museum Revenue 1,000 0 (1,000) 
Accident Report 930 1,005 75 
Rental Income - AAWS 900 900 0 
Miscellaneous Income 20,079 20,085 6 
Park Family Fun 1,010 1,010 0 
Park Revenues 0 4,150 4,150 
Interest Income 53 59 6 

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 36,900 41.257 4.357 

TOTAL REVENUES $355,744 $371,880 $16,136 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 
G & A Salaries $82,916 $82,961 $(45) 
Miscellaneous expense 0 1,545 (1.545) 
G & A Payroll Taxes 6,192 6,634 (442) 
G & A Employee Benefits 29,201 29,422 (221) 
Legal & Auditing 13,763 16,406 (2,643) 
Insurance 4,832 6,506 (1.674) 
Assessor Fees 1,070 1,070 0 
Miscellaneous Exp 8,404 8,469 (65) 
Annex Building 0 475 (475) 
Museum Expense 3,468 4,169 (701) 
Engineering Fees 1,115 1,115 0 
Office Supply & Postage 8,140 9,112 (972) 
Publications & Printing 4,895 4,942 (47) 
Dues & Subscriptions 1,225 2,050 (825) 
Town Hal' Expenses 0 (1,230) 1,230 
Teleptione Expense 5,817 5,641 176 
Repairs & maintenance 0 19 (19) 
Utilities 3.322 3,377 (55) 
Community Center Expenses 16,249 16,560 (311) 
Travel 1,826 1,826 0 
Election Cost 1,173 1,173 0 
Park Expenses 869 917 (48) 
Xerox Copier Lease Payments 1,794 1,834 (40) 
Xerox Copier Rental Payments 2,603 2,856 (252) 
Christmas Decoration Expense 1,367 1,368 (1) 
Christmas Fireworks Expense 3,000 3,000 0 
Christmas Festival Misc Expen 1,177 1,177 0 
Inter-Club Christmas Expense 2,052 2,052 0 
Drug Testing 50 50 0 
Janitorial expense 1,708 1,748 (40) 
Park Family Fun Expense 1.178 1.598 (420) 

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT 209.406 218.843 (9.437) 

PUBLIC SAFETY: 

POLICE 
Salaries 182,809 176,634 6,175 
Salaries 33,636 38,045 (4,409) 
Payroll Taxes 18,269 18,103 166 
Employee Benefits 44,043 44,006 37 
Patrol Car Expenses 16,054 15,326 728 
Uniforms 3,415 3,460 (45) 
Insurance 31,005 30,121 884 
Material & Supplies 1,091 2,492 (1,401) 
Telephone Expense 3,467 3,662 (195) 
Miscellaneous Expense 5,006 5,515 (509) 
Utilities 2,400 1,713 687 
Police Officer 0 16 (16) 
Fuel/Oil 21,542 20,662 880 
Training 460 (40) 500 
Police Officer expense 0 (370) 370 

TOTAL POLICE 363,197 359,346 3,851 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

PUBLIC SAFETY IGONTINUEDl 
FIRE 

Salaries $3,900 $3,900 $0 
Payroll Taxes 298 298 0 
Employee Benefits 429 429 0 
Truck Expense 1,508 1,874 (366) 
insurance 3,500 6,451 (2,951) 
Telephone Expense 2,083 2,083 0 
Miscellaneous Expense 480 480 0 
Utilities - CVFD 8,023 4,582 3,441 
Medical expenses 0 510 (510) 

TOTAL FIRE 20.221 20.607 (386) 

CITY COURT 
G&A Uniforms 0 221 (221) 
Coroner's fees 1,875 0 1,875 
Magistrate Fees 1,200 1,200 0 
Prisoner Rations 5,000 5,797 (797) 
Miscellaneous Expense 300 275 25 
Police Travel Expense 983 0 983 
Police Travel Expense 0 1,083 (1,083) 
Bailiffs fee 300 300 0 

TOTAL CITY COURT 9.658 8.876 782 

STREETS AND BRIDGES 
Salaries 40,039 40,518 (479) 
Payroll Taxes 2,986 2,969 17 
Employee Benefits 15,100 12,720 2,380 
Truck/Backhoe Expense 13,195 3,836 9,359 
Tractor Expense 2,416 2,499 (83) 
Materials & Supplies 6,974 8,582 (1,608) 
Repairs & Maintenance 9,880 12,241 (2,361) 
Vapor Lights 36,188 36,202 (14) 
MIsc Expense 4,584 5,514 (930) 
Uniforms 687 668 19 
Insurance 8,253 7,615 638 
Inmates meals 5,884 5,933 (49) 
Fuel/Oil - Streets 4,001 3,967 34 
Diesel - Streets 1,367 1,367 0 
Lawn Mower Misc 2432 2.599 (157) 

TOTAL STREETS AND BRIDGES 153.986 147.229 6.757 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL FUND 

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES COMPARED TO BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance -
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

HEALTH AND SANITATION 
Pest Control $885 $885 $0 
First Responder's Expense 510 0 510 

TOTAL HEALTH AND SANITATION 1.395 885 510 

CAPITAL OUTLAY 
Capital Outlay 0 9,663 (9,663) 
Capital Outlay - City Court 0 2,305 (2,305) 
Capital Outlay - Streets 0 7,253 (7,253) 
Capital Outlay - Police 50.203 47.201 3.002 

TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 50.203 66.422 f16.2191 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $808,066 $822,207 $(14,142) 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
STATEMENT OF OPERATING EXPENSES BY DEPARTMENT 

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Variance • 
Final Favorable 

Budget Actual (Unfavorable) 

WATER DEPARTMENT 
Salaries $44,200 $41,877 $2,323 
Payroll Taxes 3.344 3,170 174 
Employee Benefits 23.780 23,748 32 
Materials & Supplies 18,202 15,315 2,887 
Chemicals 45.495 46,351 (856) 
Trucks/Backhoes Expenses 3.341 3,676 (335) 
Repairs & Maintenance 28,803 32,233 (3,430) 
Water Tank Maintenance 2,460 660 1,800 
Telephone Expense 6,695 6,744 (49) 
Utilities 102,762 103,693 (931) 
Insurance 36,068 36,188 (120) 
Miscellaneous 6,464 4,255 2,209 
Fuel/Oil 5,440 5,471 (31) 
Uniforms 1,489 1,544 (55) 
Engineering Fees 6,548 1,573 4,975 
Analysis Fee 8,630 8,527 103 
Test Wells 1,200 1,200 0 
Diesel - Yellow Bayou Generator 0 269 (269) 
LA One Call 443 460 (17) 
Depreciation 51,679 66.938 (15.259) 

TOTAL WATER DEPARTMENT $397,043 $403,892 $(6,849) 

SEWER DEPARTMENT 

Salaries $54,132 $54,360 $(228) 
Payroll Taxes 4,114 4,131 (17) 
Employee Benefits 9,316 9,316 0 
Materials & Supplies 3,160 3,946 (786) 
Chemicals 21,329 22,239 (910) 
Trucka'Backhoes Expense 810 1,085 (275) 
Repairs & Maintenance 6,647 14,614 (7,967) 
Insurance 11,085 11,780 (695) 
Miscellaneous 3,723 1,413 2,310 
Utilities 20,697 21,373 (676) 
Fuel/Oil 2,961 2,725 236 
Sludge removal 1,972 1,912 60 
Uniforms 0 2,007 (2,007) 
Engineering Fees 10,285 310 9,975 
Analysis Fees 7,272 7,432 (160) 
Depreciation 44,106 62.186 (18.080) 

TOTAL SEWER DEPARTMENT $201,609 $220,830 $(19,221) 

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 

G & A Salaries $37,510 $37,439 $71 
G & A Payroll Taxes 2,851 2,844 7 
G&A Employee Benefits 2,196 2,191 5 
Legal & Auditing 8,288 8,288 0 
Office Supply & Postage 4,280 6,719 (2,439) 
Miscellaneous 300 300 0 

TOTAL GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE $55,425 $57,781 $(2,356) 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

ASSETS 

Cash and interest-bearing deposits 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALANCES 
Reserved for debt service 
Unreserved, unrestricted 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

JUNE 30, 2017 

Debt Debt Service Totals 
Service Debt Service Fund- Debt Service Non-Major 
Fund • Fund - Street Overlay Fund - Governmental 

Fire Truck Backhoe Lease Project Police Cars Funds 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

0 0 0 0 0 

o
 

O
 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, 

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017 

Debt Service 
Fund -

Fire Truck 

Debt Service 
Fund -

Backhoe 
Lease 

Debt Service 
Fund • Street 
Improvement 

s 

Debt 
Service 
Fund -

Police Cars 

Total 
Non-Major 

Governmental 
Funds 

REVENUES 

Taxes $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Intergovernmental 0 0 0 0 0 

Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL REVENUES 0 0 0 0 0 

EXPENDITURES 

General government 0 0 0 0 0 

Capital outlay 0 0 0 0 0 

Debt service 38,487 9,360 92,626 17,897 101,986 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 38,487 9,380 92,626 17,897 101,986 

Excess (deficiency) of 

revenues over expenditures (38,487) (9,360) (92,626) (17,897) (101,986) 

Operating transfers In 38,487 9,360 92,626 17,897 101,986 

Operating transfers out 0 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 38,487 9,360 92,626 17,897 101,986 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources 

FUND BAUVNCES AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 0 0 0 0 0 

FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION PAID TO ELECTED OFFICIALS 

A detail of compensation paid to individual elected officials for the year ended June 30, 2017, follows: 

Compensation 
William F. Scott, III, Mayor $ 9,600 

Council Members: 
Curtis J. Francisco, Mayor Pro-Tern 4,800 
Margaret Prater-Jenkins 4,800 
Kenneth W. Friels 4,800 
Luke L. Welch 4,800 
Brenda L. Bazile 2,400 
Demple Prater 2,400 

Ernest J. Anderson, Chief of Police 38,045 

Term Exoires/Exoired 
12/31/20 

12/31/20 
12/31/20 
12/31/20 
12/31/20 
12/31/16 
12/31/20 

12/31/20 

54 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE 1 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND 
OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEADS 

June 30, 2017 
(Without Audit) 

Agency Head; William Scot iii. Mayor 
Purpose 

Salary 
Benefits: 

Retirement 
Registration fees 
Travel 

Amount 

$9,600 

1,056 
0 

815 

$11,471 

Agency Head: Chris Lemoine, Rre Chief 

Purpose 

Salary 
Professional dues 

Amount 

$2,400 
562 

$2,962 
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OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS 
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Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC 
^ , Joan S. Ducote, CPA, PC 

UCOtC <& L HopeJ.Gagnard,CPA,PC 
Certified Public Accountants * ^ 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

The Honorable William F. Scott, III, Mayor 
And the Members of the Council 

Town of Cottonport, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to 
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Cottonport, Louisiana's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 28. 2017. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reportino 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Cottonport, 
Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Cottonport's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Town's internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses, 
or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that 
have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Gottonport, Louisiana's financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed one instance of noncompliance that is required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which we described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and responses as items 17-01. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

In addition, this report is intended for the information and use of the Mayor and Members of the Council and 
management of the Town of Gottonport, Louisiana, federal awarding agencies, and for filing with the 
Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone 
other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is 
not limited. Under Louis-ana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as 
a public document. 

DUCOTE & COMPANY 
Marksville, Louisiana 
November 28, 2017 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
Summary of Findings, and Responses 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
Material weakness(s) identified? yes x no 
Reportable condition(s) identified not 

Considered to be material weakness(s) yes x no 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes x no 

Federal Awards 

Not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 

Section H-Financial Statement Findings 

There is one finding relative to compliance labeled 17-01 as discussed In detail In Section IV, which is the 
same comment labeled 16-01 in the prior year report. 

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Not applicable for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. 
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TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
Summary of Findings and Responses (Continued) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Section iV - Summary of Current Year Audit Findings 

Internal Control Deficiencies and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

Finding 17-01: Lack of sufficient accounting expertise to prepare financial statements 

Condition Found: The accounting personnel of the Town, while capable of handling their accounting 
responsibilities lack sufficient expertise to prepare the annual financial statements with full disclosures as 
required by Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures (GAAP) and Governmental Auditing Standards. 

Cause: The job requirements do not include a degree In accounting or a sufficient lever of knowledge to 
prepare GAAP financial statements. The salary and position do not justify this requirement to fill that 
position and the Town has typically relied on the assistance of the auditor to prepare the financial 
statements in accordance with required standards. 

Recommendation: Adequate involvement and oversight in the preparation of the financial statements 
whereby accounting personnel fully understand and take responsibility for their fair presentation Is 
mandatory to maintain independence with respect to the auditing firm conducting the audit. 

Management's Response and Corrective Action Plan: It is not cost feasible to hire someone with 
sufficient knowledge and expertise to prepare the financial statements in accordance with the current 
reporting standards. It is our Intention, however, to continue to take responsibility for the preparation of the 
financial statements by verifying the Information contained therein as presented. In addition, the Town will 
take full responsibility for any audit adjustments proposed by the auditor with full understanding of those 
adjustments and the disclosures contained in the financial report before its issuance. 

60 



TOWN OF COTTONPORT, LOUISIANA 
Status of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Ref No. 

Fiscal Year 
Finding 
Initially 
Occurred Description of Finding 

Corrective 
Action 
Taken 

(Yes, No, 
Partiallv) 

Date 
Planned 

Corrective Action/ 
Partial Corrective 
Action Taken 

Section I - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

16-01 Lack of sufficient 
accounting expertise 
to prepare financial 
statements. 

GAAP financial statements 
were prepared with the 
assistance of the auditor 
due to the lack of sufficient 
accounting expertise by 
management. 

No 

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 

None reported in prior year. 

Section III - Management Letter 

None reported in prior year. 
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Aloysia C. Ducote, CPA, PC 
r> f m Joan S. Ducote, CPA PC 

UCptC & K^OTHVClTiy HopeJ.Gagnard.CPAPC 
Certified Public Accountants > ^ 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

The Honorable William F. Scott. Ill, Mayor 
And Members of the Council 

Town of Cottonport, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by the Town of Cottonport, 
Louisiana and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (CfC) areas identified 
in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017. The Town's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards 
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and appl cable standards of 
Government Auditing Standards. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the 
specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regard ng the sufficiency of the 
procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other 
purpose. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Written Pothies and Procedures 

1. Obtain the Town's written policies and procedures and report whether those written policies and 
procedures address each of the following financial/business functions (or report that the Town does not 
have any written policies and procedures), as applicable: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

b) Purchasing, inciuding (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the public bid law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts, inciuding receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, and (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how cards are 
to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required 
approvers, and (5) monitoring card usage. 

h) Travel and expense reimbursement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 
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i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute 42:1111-1121, (2) 
actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics violations, 
and (4) requirement that all employees, including elected officials, annually attest through signature 
verification that they have read the Town's ethics policy. 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) EMMA reporting requirements, (3) debt 
reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

Written policies and procedures in each of the areas noted above were obtained and 
reviewed for proper inclusion of appropriate financial/business functions of the Town with 
no exceptions noted. 

Board (or Finance Committee, if applicable) 

2. Obtain and review the council minutes for the fiscal period, and: 

a) Report whether the managing council met {with a quorum) at least monthly, or on a frequency in 
accordance with the councirs enabling legislation, charter, or other equivalent document. 

Verified all monthly meetings had a quorum and minutes adequately documented actions 
taken. 

b) Report whether the minutes referenced or Included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the 
General Fund and any additional funds identified as major funds In the entity's prior audit (GAAP-
basis). 

Budget comparisons are reviewed semi-annually with the Council and Mayor and 
amendments to the budget are made usually in May of each year as needed based on budget 
comparison reports. (Exception) 

c) Report whether the minutes referenced or included non-budgetary financial information (e.g. 
approval of contracts and disbursements) for at least one meeting during the fiscal period. 

Monthly cash position summaries, accounts payable listings and other non-budgetary 
financial Information Is presented for approval by the Mayor and Council. 

Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts from management and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. 

The listing was provided by management. 

4. Using the listing provided by management, select all of the Town's bank accounts (if five accounts or 
less) or one-third of the bank accounts on a three year rotating basis {if more than 5 accounts). If there 
is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the rotation established by the 
previous practitioner. For each of the bank accounts selected, obtain bank statements and 
reconciliations for all months in the fiscal period and report whether: 

a) Bank reconciliations have been prepared: 

Each bank account selected was reconciled without exception. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management or a council member (with 
no involvement in the transactions associated with the bank account) has reviewed each bank 
reconciliation; and 

The Town Implemented a procedure beginning after June 2017 to include approval and sign 
off by a Council member who does not have signature authority on any of the bank 
accounts. This procedure was not in place for the year ended June 30, 2017. (Exception) 
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c) If applicable, management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reccrvcHing items 
that have been outstanding for more than 6 months as of the end of the fiscal period. 

No items were outstanding for more than 6 months other than in the Meter Customer Deposit 
account. These checks are periodically turned over to unclaimed property as deemed 
necessary. 

Collections 

5. Obtain a listing of cash/check/money order (cash) collection locations and management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

The Town has only one collection location. 

6. Using the listing provided by management, select all of the Town's cash collection locations (if five 
locations or less) or one-third of the collection locations on a three year rotating basis (if more than 5 
locations) If there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the rotation 
established by the previous practitioner. For each cash collection location selected; 

a) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. insurance policy, policy manual, job description) and 
report whether each person responsible for collecting cash is (1) bonded, (2) not responsib'e for 
depositing the cash in the bank, recording the related transaction, or reconciling the related bank 
account (report if there are compensating controls performed by an outside party), and (3) not 
required to share the same cash register or drawer with another employee. 

All employees handling cash are bonded and do not share a drawer with any other 
employees. Employees collecting cash do make deposits but do not record the related 
transactions nor reconcile the bank account activity. (Exception) 

b) Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. sequentially numbered receipts, system report, 
reconciliation worksheets, policy manual) and report whether the entity has a formal process to 
reconcile cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source 
and/or agency fund additions, by a person who is not responsibie for cash collections in the cash 
collection location selected. 

The Town Clerk does not collect or deposit any cash receipts and handles the 
reconciliations of receipts to the general ledger and reconciles the cash collections and 
bank account activity. The only deposits made by the Town Clerk are for Occupational 
Licenses, Liquor and Beer permits and Sales Tax remittances from the parish. (Exception) 

c) Select the highest (dollar) week of cash collections from the general ledger or other accounting 
records during the fiscal period and: 

Using Town coilection documentation, deposit slips, and bank statements, trace daily 
collections to the deposit date on the corresponding bank statement and report whether the 
deposits were made within one day of collection. If deposits were not made within one day of 
collection, report the number of days from receipt to deposit for each day at each collection 
location. 

The majority of the time deposits are made the same day. With a few exceptions, 
deposits were made within three days. 

> Using sequentially numbered receipts, system reports, or other related collection 
documentation, verify that daily cash collections are completely supported by documentation 
and report any exceptions. 

No exceptions noted in this area for the items tested. 
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7. Obtain existing written documentation (e.g. policy manual, written procedure) and report whether the 
Town has a process specifically defined (identified as such by the Town) to determine completeness 
of all collections, including electronic transfers, for each revenue source and agency fund additions 
(e.g. periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, 
reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation) by a 
person who is not responsible for collections. 

All recording and reconciling of cash collections and receipts Is handled by the Town Clerk who 
is not responsible for any collection procedures. 

Disbursements - General (excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-Card purchases or 
payment^ 

8. Obtain a listing of entity disbursements from management or, alternately, obtain the general ledger and 
sort/filter for town disbursements. Obtain management's representation that the listing or general 
ledger population is complete. 

The listing was provided by management. 

9. Using the disbursement population from #8 above, randomly select 25 disbursements (or randomly 
select disbursements constituting at least one-third of the dollar disbursement population if the Town 
had less than 25 transactions during the fiscal period), excluding credit card/debit card/fuel card/P-card 
purchases or payments. Obtain supporting documentation (e.g. purchase requisitions, system 
screens/logs) for each transaction and report whether the supporting documentation for each 
transaction demonstrated that: 

a) Purchases were initiated using a requisition/purchase order system or an equivalent electronic 
system that separates initiation from approval functions in the same manner as a 
requisition/purchase order system. 

Purchase orders are used for fuel and supplies only. All other purchases are approved by 
the Mayor and Council for payment. 

b) Purchase orders, or an electronic equivalent, were approved by a person who did not initiate the 
purchase. 

This procedure is being followed with no exceptions noted. 

c) Payments for purchases were not processed without (1) an approved requisition and/or purchase 
order, or electronic equivatent; a receiving report showing receipt of goods purchased, or electronic 
equivalent; and an approved invoice. 

This procedure is being followed with no exceptions noted. 

10. Using Town documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, policy manual, written 
procedure), report whether the person responsib'e for processing payments is prohibited from adding 
vendors to the Town's purchasing/disbursement system. 

All new vendors are required to complete a W-9 and cannot be added to the system without 
approval from the Mayor. 

11. Using Town documentation (e.g. electronic system control documentation, policy manual, written 
procedure), report whether the persons with signatory authority or who make the final authorization for 
disbursements have no responsibility for initiating or recording purchases. 

The Mayor has final authorization for disbursements but does not record purchases and does 
not have access to print checks. All checks require two signatures. 
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12. Inquire of management and observe whether the supply of unused checks is maintained in a locked 
location, with access restricted to those persons that do not have signatory authority, and report any 
exceptions. Alternately, if the checks are electronically printed on blank check stock, review Town 
documentation (electronic system control documentation) and report whether the persons with 
signatory authority have system access to print checks. 

Checks are kept in a locked safe. Only the Town Clerk and deputy clerk have access to print 
and sign checks. All checks require two signatures. 

13. If a signature stamp or signature machine is used, inquire of the signer whether his or her signature is 
maintained under his or her control or is used only with the knowledge and consent of the signer. 
Inquire of the signer whether signed checks are likewise maintained under the control of the signer or 
authorized user until mailed. Report any exceptions. 

The Town does not use signature stamps. Checks are maintained under the control of the 
signer until mailed. 

Credit Cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards), including the card numbers and the names of the persons who maintained possession of the 
cards. Obtain management's representation that the listing is complete. 

The listing was provided by management. The Town has only one credit card. 

15. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 10 cards (or at least one-third of the cards 
if the Town has less than 10 cards) that were used during the fiscal period, rotating cards each year. If 
there is a change in practitioners, the new practitioner is not bound to follow the rotation established by 
the previous practitioner. 

Obtain the monthly statements, or combined statements if multiple cards are on one statement, for the 
selected cards. Select the monthly statement or combined statement with the largest dollar activity for 
each card (for a debit card, select the monthly bank statement with the largest dollar amount of debit 
card purchases) and: 

a) Report whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and supporting 
documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the authorized card 
holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials 
(e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.)] 

No evidence of approval by anyone other than the card holder. (Exception) 

b) Report whether finance charges and/or late fees were assessed on the selected statements. 

No finance charges or late fees were assessed. 

16. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #15 above, obtain supporting 
documentation for all transactions for each of the 10 cards selected (i.e. each of the 10 cards should 
have one month of transactions subject to testing). 

a) For each transaction, report whether the transaction is supported by: 

> An original itemized receipt (i.e., identifies precisely what was purchased) 

Receipts were attached for all purchases. 
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> Documentation of the business/public purpose. For meal charges, there should also be 
documentation of the individuals participating. 

Appropriate documentation was attached for all purchases. 

> Other documentation that may be required by written policy (e.g., purchase order, written 
authorization,) 

Not applicable. 

b) For each transaction, compare the transaction's detail (nature of purchase, dollar amount of 
purchase, supporting documentation) to the Town's written purchasing/disbursement policies and 
the Louisiana Public Bid Law (i.e. transaction is a large or recurring purchase requiring the 
solicitation of bids or quotes) and report any exceptions. 

For each transaction tested the Town's written purchasing/disbursement policies were 
followed without exception. 

c) For each transaction, compare the Town's documentation of the business/public purpose to the 
requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits the loan, pledge, 
or donation of funds, credit, property, or things of value, and report any exceptions (e.g. cash 
advances or non-business purchases, regardless whether they are reimbursed). If the nature of 
the transaction precludes or obscures a comparison to the requirements of Article 7, Section 14, 
the practitioner should report the transaction as an exception, 

No evidence of noncompliance noted for the transactions tested. 

Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

17- Obtain from management a listing of all travel and related expense reimbursements, by person, during 
the f seal period or, alternately, obtain the general ledger and sort/filter for travel reimbursements. 
Obtain management's representation that the listing or general ledger is complete. 

The listing was provided by management. 

18. Obtain the Town's written policies related to travel and expense reimbursements. Compare the 
amounts in the policies to the per diem and mileage rates established by the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.qsa.qov) and report any amounts that exceed GSA rates. 

The Town reimburses actual meals and lodging and uses the standard IRS mileage rate for any 
travel reimbursments. 

19. Using the listing or general ledger from #17 above, select the three persons who incurred the most 
travel costs during the fiscal period. Obtain the expense reimbursement reports or prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected person, including the supporting documentation, and choose the 
largest travel expense for each person to review in detail. For each of the three travel expenses 
selected; 

a) Compare expense documentation to written policies and report whether each expense was 
reimbursed or prepaid in accordance with written policy (e.g., rates established for meals, mileage, 
lodging). If the entity does not have written policies, compare to the GSA rates (#18 above) and 
report each reimbursement that exceeded those rates. 

All expense reimbursements tested were in accordance with the Town's written policy. 
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b) Report whether each expense is supported by: 

> An origina! itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. [Note: An expense 
that is reimbursed based on an established per diem amount (e.g., meals) does not require a 
receipt.] 

Itemized receipts were provided for all Travel and Expense reimbursements. 

> Documentation of the business/public purpose (Note: For meal charges, there should also be 
documentat on of the individuals participating). 

Appropriate documentation was provided as to the business purpose for each 
reimbursement tested. 

> Other documentation as may be required by written policy (e.g., authorization for travel, 
conference brochure, certificate of attendance) 

Not applicable. 

c) Compare the Town's documentation of the business/public purpose to the requirements of Article 
7. Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, which prohibits the loan, pledge, or donation of funds, 
credit, property, or things of value, and report any exceptions (e.g. hotel stays that extend beyond 
conference periods or payment for the travel expenses of a spouse). If the nature of the transaction 
precludes or obscures a comparison to the requirements of Article 7, Section 14, the practitioner 
should report the transaction as an exception. 

The Town's documentation of business/public purpose for tested expenses appeared to 
comply with the requirements of Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

d) Report whether each expense and related documentation was reviewed and approved, in writing, 
by someone other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Appropriate approval of each expense tested was noted without exception. 

Co/1 tracts 

20, Obtain a listing of all contracts in effect during the fiscal period or, alternately, obtain the general ledger 
and sort/filter for contract payments. Obtain management's representation that the listing or general 
ledger is complete. 

The listing was provided by management. 

21, Using the listing above, select the five contract "vendors" that were paid the most money during the 
fiscal period (excluding purchases on state contract and excluding payments to the practitioner). Obtain 
the related contracts and paid invoices and: 

a) Report whether there is a formal/written contract that supports the services arrangement and the 
amount paid. 

Of the five largest vendor payments for the fiscal year, only one required a written contract. 

b) Compare each contract's detail to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement Code. Report 
whether each contract is subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law or Procurement Code and: 

If yes, obtain/compare supporting contract documentation to legal requirements and report 
whether the entity complied with all legal requirements (e.g., solicited quotes or bids, 
advertisement, selected lowest bidder) 

None of the contract payments were subject to the Louisiana Public Bid Law. 

> If no, obtain supporting contract documentation and report whether the entity solicited quotes 
as a best practice. 

Quotations are obtained and documented on all applicable purchases. 
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c) Report whether the contract was amended. If so, report the scope and dollar amount of the 
amendment and whether the original contract terms contemplated or provided for such an 
amendment. 

There were no contract amendments. 

d) Select the largest payment from each of the five contracts, obtain the supporting invoice, compare 
the invoice to the contract terms, and report whether the invoice and related payment complied with 
the terms and conditions of the contract, 

All payments tested were in compliance. 

e) Obtain/review contract documentation and council minutes and report whether there is 
documentation of council approval, if required by policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act or Home Rule 
Charter). 

Not required by policy. 

Payroll and Personnel 

22. Obtain a listing of employees (and elected officials, if app'icable) with their related salaries, and obtain 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select five employees/officials, 
obtain their personnel files, and: 

a) Review compensation paid to each employee during the fiscal period and report whether payments 
were made in strict accordance with the terms and conditions of the employment contract or pay 
rate structure. 

All five employees tested were paid in accordance with the approved pay rate. 

b) Review changes made to hourly pay rates.'salaries during the fiscal period and report whether those 
changes were approved in writing and in accordance with written policy. 

Four out of the five tested had pay rate changes which were all properly approved and 
documented. 

23- Obtain attendance and leave records and randomly select one pay period in which leave has been 
taken by at least one employee. Within that pay period, randomly select 25 employees/officials (or 
randomly select one-third of employees/officials if the entity had less than 25 employees during the 
fiscal period), and: 

a) Report whether all selected employees/officials documented their daily attendance and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendance and leave. However, if the elected official is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.) 

Daily attendance was properly document for all twenty-five selected other than the three 
council members who are not required to document daily attendance. 

b) Report whether there is written documentation that supervisors approved, electronically or in 
writing, the attendance and leave of the selected employees/officials. 

Approval for leave taken was properly documented. 

c) Report whether there is written documentation that the entity maintained written leave records (e.g., 
hours earned, hours used, and balance available) on those selected employees/officials that earn 
leave. 

The Town maintains written leave records on all applicable employees. 
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24. Obtain from management a list of ttiose employees/officials that terminated during the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the list is complete. If applicable, select the two largest termination 
payments (e.g.. vacation, sick, compensatory time) made during the fiscal period and obtain the 
personnel files for the two employees/officials. Report whether the termination payments were made 
in strict accordance with policy and/or contract and approved by management. 

All leave was paid in accordance with policy for those employees tested. 

25. Obtain supporting documentation (e.g. cancelled checks, EFT documentation) relating to payroll taxes 
and retirement contributions during the fiscal period. Report whether the employee and employer 
portions of payroll taxes and retirement contributions, as well as the required reporting forms, were 
submitted to the applicable agencies by the required deadlines. 

All payroll taxes and retirement contributions were reported timely to all agencies. 

Ethics (excluding nonprofits) 

26. Using the five randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #22 under "Payroll and Personnel" 
above, obtain ethics compliance documentation from management and report whether the entity 
maintained documentation to demonstrate that required ethics training was completed. 

Of the five tested four had completed the ethics training, one was a new hire who had not yet 
completed the training but was scheduled to do so. 

27. Inquire of management whether any alleged ethics violations were reported to the Town during the 
fiscal period. If applicable, review documentation that demonstrates whether management investigated 
alleged ethics violations, the corrective actions taken, and whether management's actions complied 
with the Town's ethics policy. Report whether management received allegations, whether management 
investigated allegations received, and whether the allegations were addressed in accordance with 
policy. 

Management is not aware of any alleged or actual ethics violations during the fiscal year. 

Debt Service (excluding nonprofits) 

28, If debt was issued during the fiscal period, obtain supporting documentation from the Town, and report 
whether State Bond Commission approval was obtained. 

The only debt Issued for the fiscal period was lease purchase agreements not subject to 
approval by the State Bond Commission. 

29, If the Town had outstanding debt during the fisca period, obtain supporting documentation from the 
Town and report whether the entity made scheduled debt service payments and maintained debt 
reserves, as required by debt covenants. 

The Town is currently not subject to reserve or debt service payment requirements on any of 
its debt. 

30, If the Town had tax millages relafng to debt service, obtain supporting documentation and report 
whether miiiage collections exceed debt service payments by more than 10% during the fiscal period. 
Also, report any miilages that continue to be received for debt that has been paid off. 

The Town had no tax millages related to debt service. 
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Other _ 

31. Inquire of management whether the Town had any misappropriations of public funds or assets, If so. 
obtain/review supporting documentation and report whether the Town reported the misappropriation to 
the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in wh'ch the Town is domiciled. 

Management informed us that the Town did not have any misappropriation of public funds or 
assets during the fiscal year. 

32. Observe and report whether the Town has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by 
R.S. 24:523.1. This notice (available for download or print at www.lla.la.Qov/hotline1 concerns the 
reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds. 

As of the date tested the notice was posted on its premises and the Town's website. 

33. If the practitioner observes or othenwise identifies any exceptions regarding management's 
representations in the procedures above, report the nature of each exception. 

We did not observe or otherwise identify any exceptions regarding management's 
representations in the procedures above. 

We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters might have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance, 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this 
report is distributed by the LLA as a pub ic document. 

DUCOTE & COMPANY 
Marksville, Louisiana 
November 28, 2017 
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